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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had at 

10:36 a.m.: 

EXAMINER STOGNER: At t h i s time I b e l i e v e we are 

ready t o c a l l Case Number 11,434. 

MR. CARROLL: A p p l i c a t i o n of Meridian O i l , I n c . , 

f o r compulsory p o o l i n g and an unorthodox gas w e l l l o c a t i o n , 

San Juan County, New Mexico. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: C a l l f o r appearances i n t h i s 

matter. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I'm Tom K e l l a h i n of 

the Santa Fe law f i r m of K e l l a h i n and K e l l a h i n , appearing 

on behalf of Meridian O i l , I n c., and I have th r e e witnesses 

t o be sworn. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Other appearances? 

MR. CARR: May i t please the Examiner, my name i s 

W i l l i a m F. Carr w i t h the Santa Fe law f i r m Campbell, Carr 

and Berge. 

We represent i n t h i s matter Four Star O i l and Gas 

Company. I do not inte n d t o c a l l a witness. 

MR. CONDON: Mr. Examiner, I'm Michael Condon 

w i t h the Gallegos law f i r m here i n Santa Fe. 

We represent Doyle and Margaret Hartman, doing 

business as Doyle Hartman, O i l Operator, opposing the 

A p p l i c a t i o n . 

I have one witness t o be sworn i n . 
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EXAMINER STOGNER: Any other appearances besides 

these t h r e e p a r t i e s ? 

Before I swear any witnesses i n , I b e l i e v e there 

were some motions a t t h i s time. S h a l l we get some l e g a l 

arguments s e t t l e d at t h i s point? 

MR. CONDON: Yes, Mr. Examiner, we f i l e d an 

i n t e r v e n t i o n and Motion t o Dismiss the A p p l i c a t i o n — I 

be l i e v e Four Star has also f i l e d a Motion t o Dismiss — on 

the grounds t h a t the A p p l i c a t i o n shouldn't even be 

considered, because i t seeks t o for c e - p o o l i n t e r e s t s which 

are already v o l u n t a r i l y pooled by agreement of a l l i n t e r e s t 

owners i n the p r o r a t i o n u n i t at issue, and i n the formation 

which Meridian seeks t o a f f e c t by i t s A p p l i c a t i o n t o d r i l l 

the Seymour Number 7A w e l l . 

I am aware t h a t the Examiner has sent out a 

l e t t e r dated January 8th, 1996, i n d i c a t i n g t h a t 

n o t w i t h s t a n d i n g our Motion t o Dismiss, you in t e n d t o 

consider the A p p l i c a t i o n today a t the hearing. 

I would — I f you would l i k e t o hear a summary of 

the l e g a l argument on the Motion t o Dismiss, I would be 

happy t o do t h a t now. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay. f o r the record, I 

be l i e v e t h a t my l e t t e r of two days ago r e f e r r e d t o your 

o r i g i n a l case t o dismiss, f i l e d back i n November. 

MR. CONDON: Correct. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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EXAMINER STOGNER: And then Mr. K e l l a h i n ' s 

l e t t e r , I b e l i e v e , of January 8th. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I t was — 

EXAMINER STOGNER: No, I'm so r r y , January 5 th. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I t was f i l e d l a t e on Friday w i t h 

the prehearing statement. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: January 5th, and i t was on my 

desk on Monday. 

My l e t t e r of January 8th e s s e n t i a l l y was the 

r e p l y t o both of your l e t t e r s a t t h a t time. 

And since t h a t time, w i t h Mr. Carr's request t o 

dismiss f o r Four Star and your r e p l y t o my l e t t e r of 

January 8 t h , those have not been issued or acted upon at 

t h i s time. 

Notwithstanding, Mr. Carr, do you have anything 

t o say a t t h i s p o i n t about your motion? 

MR. CARR: I ' d l i k e t o make a b r i e f statement. 

I t was f i l e d t h i s week. 

You should be advised t h a t Four Star O i l and Gas 

Company has f o r a month and a h a l f been t r y i n g t o determine 

whether or not they should go forward w i t h t h i s Motion, and 

we de f e r r e d our a c t i o n u n t i l t h i s week, w a i t i n g f o r 

m a t e r i a l t h a t was supplied by Meridian, and I'm t a l k i n g 

about s p e c i f i c cases t h a t were referenced i n Mr. K e l l a h i n ' s 

memorandum i n response t o the Hartman memo. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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We've reviewed t h a t , and I was d i r e c t e d t o go 

forward w i t h a Motion t o Dismiss. 

As you know, our Motion t o Dismiss r e a l l y r e s t s 

on two arguments. 

The f i r s t i s t h a t because there are both the 

communitization agreement and an operating agreement 

executed by a l l p a r t i e s or t h e i r predecessors i n the east 

h a l f of Section 23, because those documents e x i s t , because 

they combine and v a l i d l y pool the acreage, because they 

govern how Mesaverde operations are t o be conducted, i t i s 

our p o s i t i o n t h a t , i n f a c t , t h i s t r a c t i s not a v a i l a b l e t o 

be force-pooled by the D i v i s i o n . 

As we a l l know, the p o o l i n g s t a t u t e i s very 

s p e c i f i c , and i t provides t h a t owners may v a l i d l y pool 

t h e i r i n t e r e s t s and develop t h e i r lands as u n i t . 

And i t goes on t o say, where, however, such owner 

or owners have not agreed t o pool t h e i r i n t e r e s t s , the 

D i v i s i o n , a f t e r a proper a p p l i c a t i o n i s made, s h a l l pool 

the land. 

Our p o s i t i o n i s very simply t h a t the s t a t u t e 

c o n t r o l s , t h a t your orders and r u l e s do not, t h a t are 

i s s u e d p u r s u a n t t o t h e s t a t u t e . And t h e s t a t u t e says t h a t 

where owners have agreed, you cannot pool. Where owners 

have not agreed, you may. I t ' s t h a t simple. 

And here we have a communitization agreement t h a t 
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combines the acreage, the east h a l f of the s e c t i o n . We 

have an op e r a t i n g agreement, an ope r a t i n g agreement 

pursuant t o which Meridian i s operating the pro p e r t y . 

They're both v a l i d , and they govern how the p r o p e r t y i s t o 

be operated. And consequently i t i s n ' t a v a i l a b l e f o r 

p o o l i n g . 

Now, Mr. K e l l a h i n c i t e d a number of cases t o you 

i n support of the p o s i t i o n t h a t you should come i n and 

enter an order and take a p o s i t i o n t h a t ' s i n c o n s i s t e n t w i t h 

the s t a t u t e , and i t overrides the p r i o r agreements. 

But the fundamental f a l l a c y i n Mr. K e l l a h i n ' s 

cases i s t h a t none of them i n v o l v e a s i t u a t i o n where the 

p a r t i e s v o l u n t a r i l y combine or v a l i d l y combine t h e i r lands. 

You have cases where the D i v i s i o n force-pooled 

the t r a c t , and then they came back and force-pooled again 

because t h e r e was a subsequent w e l l . But you see the 

p a r t i e s t h e r e had not v a l i d l y combined t h e i r i n t e r e s t s . 

You have s i t u a t i o n s i n v o l v i n g Hartman, and I 

b e l i e v e i t was Chevron, where was a new a p o o l i n g order, 

but i t governed d i f f e r e n t acreage. There again, t h e r e was 

not an agreement between the p a r t i e s t o combine those lands 

f o r development. 

And i t i s our p o s i t i o n t h a t the east h a l f i s not 

a v a i l a b l e t o be force-pooled. 

And t h i s i s n ' t new. There have been recent cases 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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where the D i v i s i o n has decided they can't pool acreage. 

There was a f i g h t l a s t year between Santa Fe and 

P h i l l i p s . Santa Fe wanted t o pool the east h a l f of the 

s e c t i o n , and w h i l e they were n e g o t i a t i n g , P h i l l i p s put 

t o g e t h e r a v o l u n t a r y south-half u n i t . And the D i v i s i o n 

concluded the southwest quarter was not a v a i l a b l e f o r 

p o o l i n g because i t was already committed v o l u n t a r i l y t o 

another t r a c t . 

And the p o s i t i o n taken by P h i l l i p s i n t h a t case 

i s , when the p a r t i e s agree, the D i v i s i o n doesn't have 

a u t h o r i t y . We t h i n k t h a t p o s i t i o n taken by P h i l l i p s i s 

c o r r e c t . And so we b e l i e v e t h a t the acreage i s u n a v a i l a b l e 

f o r p o o l i n g . 

We also b e l i e v e t h a t the case has t o be dismissed 

on a second ground, and t h a t i s t h a t Meridian simply jumped 

the gun, t h a t Meridian d i d not provide a reasonable 

o p p o r t u n i t y f o r Texaco or Four Star t o v o l u n t a r i l y commit 

t h e i r i n t e r e s t . 

And I t h i n k the record here today w i l l show t h a t 

although there were n e g o t i a t i o n s about terms and p o s s i b l e 

amendments t o these agreements, and those n e g o t i a t i o n s took 

place i n 1993, t h i s w e l l was proposed by a l e t t e r dated 

October 31, received November 6th, and t h a t i s the date a 

p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d . 

That's not reasonable time. That's not coming t o 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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you as an avenue of l a s t r e s o r t . That's coming t o you 

f i r s t , and i t ' s t a k i n g a sword and h o l d i n g i t over our head 

and saying, s i g n up or get pooled. And t h a t ' s not the 

i n t e n t of the s t a t u t e . They d i d n ' t act i n good f a i t h . 

And t h i s i s not a new s i t u a t i o n e i t h e r . A year 

and a h a l f ago I came before t h i s Commission, or D i v i s i o n , 

w i t h a case where Maralo, two days a f t e r c o n t a c t i n g Bass, 

f i l e d a p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n . Bass complained, they had not 

had a reasonable time, a reasonable o p p o r t u n i t y t o j o i n . 

Maralo continued the case f o r f o u r weeks. Four 

weeks passed. 

At the end of the f o u r weeks, a f t e r the 

continuance, the motion t o dismiss was renewed. And Bass's 

motion was then granted on the grounds t h a t we had jumped 

the gun i n b r i n g i n g the a p p l i c a t i o n . I t wasn't cured by 

the continuance, but i t was t h a t we hadn't given, i n t h a t 

case, Bass a reasonable o p p o r t u n i t y t o reach a v o l u n t a r y 

agreement. 

Here, we submit t h a t f i l i n g a p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n 

the day you receive a l e t t e r proposing the w e l l simply i s 

not a reasonable time, i t i s not g o o d - f a i t h n e g o t i a t i o n s t o 

reach a v o l u n t a r y agreement. 

And on both of these grounds, t h i s and the f a c t 

t h a t the lands are not a v a i l a b l e f o r p o o l i n g , on both of 

these grounds, the A p p l i c a t i o n should be dismissed. That's 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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our p o s i t i o n . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Thank you, Mr. Car r . 

Mr. Condon, do you want t o r e s t a t e your request 

f o r dismissal? 

MR. CONDON: Yes, Mr. Examiner. I t h i n k 

Hartman's primary basis i s the same as the f i r s t basis 

a r t i c u l a t e d by Four Star, and t h a t i s t h a t there i s a v a l i d 

p o o l i n g agreement i n e f f e c t t h a t covers t h i s p r o r a t i o n u n i t 

and the lands and the formation a t issue and t h a t the 

D i v i s i o n does not have the a u t h o r i t y t o e s s e n t i a l l y step 

i n t o a p r i v a t e c o n t r a c t matter between the i n t e r e s t owners 

i n t h i s t r a c t and order some i n t e r e s t owners t o accept the 

terms and co n d i t i o n s which are attempting t o be imposed by 

Meridian i n t h i s case. 

This i s a p r i v a t e matter because the p a r t i e s have 

entered i n t o a vo l u n t a r y agreement by which they have 

pooled t h e i r i n t e r e s t i n these lands, and i t should be l e f t 

t o whatever n e g o t i a t i o n s the p a r t i e s want t o make as t o 

whether any a d d i t i o n a l w e l l s on t h i s acreage w i l l or w i l l 

not be d r i l l e d and t h a t the Commission and the D i v i s i o n 

should not allow i t s e l f t o be used by Meridian t o t r y t o 

fo r c e an agreement i n a p r i v a t e c o n t r a c t u a l matter down on 

other i n t e r e s t owners. 

And I bel i e v e t h a t t h a t i s , i n essence, our 

p o s i t i o n . And we concur i n Four Star's argument regarding 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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the t i m i n g and the lack of g o o d - f a i t h bargaining and 

attempts t o get agreement by the various i n t e r e s t owners i n 

Meridian's proposal. 

I would also -- I want t o j u s t address one p o i n t 

t h a t Meridian r a i s e d i n i t s response t o our Motion t o 

Dismiss, which was served on us on Monday. 

Meridian argues t h a t somehow the f a c t t h a t the 

Commission r e v i s e d the p r o r a t i o n u n i t spacing r u l e s f o r 

t h i s f o rmation back i n 1974 t o allow f o r the d r i l l i n g of a 

second i n f i l l w e l l on 320-acre p r o r a t i o n u n i t s somehow 

compels the d r i l l i n g of a second u n i t on t h i s w e l l . I 

b e l i e v e they c i t e t o Order R-1670 as support f o r t h i s 

argument. 

A review of t h a t order, which we have attached as 

an e x h i b i t t o our r e p l y , I t h i n k , p o i n t s out t h a t what t h a t 

order d i d was, i t allowed f o r the d r i l l i n g of an o p t i o n a l 

second w e l l on 320-acre p r o r a t i o n u n i t s , i f the p a r t i e s 

d e s i r e t o do t h a t . 

And the f a c t of the matter i s , the p a r t i e s have 

not d e s i r e d t o do t h a t here. There's nothing i n t h a t order 

t h a t compels the d r i l l i n g of a second w e l l , and nothing i n 

t h a t o r d e r t h a t g r a n t s t h e D i v i s i o n o r t h e Commission t h e 

a u t h o r i t y again t o step i n t o a p r i v a t e c o n t r a c t u a l 

agreement between p a r t i e s who have already v o l u n t a r i l y 

pooled t h e i r i n t e r e s t s and compel some p a r t i e s t o t h a t 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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agreement t o accept the p o s i t i o n and wishes of another 

p a r t y t o t h a t agreement. 

And I would also j u s t urge and in c o r p o r a t e by 

reference a l l these arguments t h a t are i n the pleadings 

t h a t we have f i l e d . I n the event the Examiner does not 

grant the Motion t o Dismiss, a l l of these arguments are 

eq u a l l y v a l i d i n o p p o s i t i o n t o the A p p l i c a t i o n , regardless 

of any p a r t i c u l a r r u l i n g on the Motion t o Dismiss, and we 

would urge, even i f the Examiner denies the Motion t o 

Dismiss, t h a t a l l the arguments be considered i n o p p o s i t i o n 

t o the A p p l i c a t i o n . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Do you concur, Mr. Carr? 

MR. CARR: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Condon has f i n a l l y put h i s 

f i n g e r on the dilemma, Mr. Examiner, and t h a t i s , we are 

t a l k i n g about the Mesaverde i n f i l l w e l l , where the 1953 

agreement does not allow f o r the i n f i l l w e l l . And the 

dilemma i s t h a t Meridian would l i k e t h a t w e l l d r i l l e d . 

We be l i e v e you have s u f f i c i e n t s t a t u t o r y 

a u t h o r i t y , and there i s case law t h a t supports a r e s o l u t i o n 

of t h i s issue. 

There i s an abundance of m a t e r i a l been submitted 

t o you by a l l sides. We would l i k e you t o look a t our 

statement of f a c t s on our summary where I have provided you 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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w i t h the document t h a t you read on Monday. I t i s simply 

t h i s , t h a t i n 1953, when the o r i g i n a l p a r t i e s , who are none 

of these p a r t i e s here, reached an agreement about 

development of the Mesaverde, i t was pre d i c a t e d on the 

e x i s t i n g spacing i n existence a t t h a t time, which was 3 2 0-

acre gas spacing. 

Attached t o t h a t operating agreement i s a 

communitization agreement. And as we a l l know, those 

o p e r a t i n g agreements, then, as now, are con d i t i o n e d upon 

communitization agreements, p a r t i c u l a r l y i n t h i s case when 

you're c o n s o l i d a t i n g two f e d e r a l o i l and gas leases. The 

northeast quarter i s one f e d e r a l lease, the southeast 

q u a r t e r i s the second f e d e r a l lease. 

The operating agreement i s contingent upon the 

communitization agreement, which has language on the f i r s t 

page of t h a t communitization agreement i n the preamble t h a t 

says t h a t t h i s i s i n conformance w i t h the w e l l spacing 

p a t t e r n , and t h a t ' s why the leases were being consolidated. 

The time reference i s important. This i s 1953. 

The p a r t i e s d i d not know t h a t the w e l l spacing d e n s i t y 

p a t t e r n was going t o be changed. I n f a c t , i t was changed 

by the Commission i n 1974. You are w e l l aware of the 

i n f i l l orders of the Mesaverde. 

The problem i s t h a t Hartman and Four Star are 

arguing t h a t t h i s o l d p r i v a t e c o n t r a c t , now, i s an absolute 
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p r e c l u s i o n of what Meridian would l i k e t o d e s i r e t o do i n 

terms of d r i l l i n g the i n f i l l w e l l . The i n f i l l w e l l has 

been authorized by the D i v i s i o n , and y e t they're u t i l i z i n g 

the 1953 agreement as an excuse t o preclude and t o o v e r r i d e 

the a p p l i c a t i o n of the D i v i s i o n r u l e s t o the pool. And 

t h a t , I t h i n k , i s the th r e s h o l d issue. 

You've got a u t h o r i t y . You f i n d when you look a t 

the i n f i l l orders, there i s s p e c i f i c and c l e a r f i n d i n g s by 

the Commission t h a t these i n f i l l w e l l s w i l l s u b s t a n t i a l l y 

increase recoverable gas reserves, and i t goes on a t le n g t h 

t a l k i n g about the necessity and the appropriateness of 

those i n f i l l w e l l s i n order t o prevent waste. 

Back i n 1963, the New Mexico Supreme Court 

addressed compulsory p o o l i n g , i n the Sims-Mechem case, and 

I t h i n k i t ' s important t o look at t h a t case. They were 

c o n s t r u i n g the f o r c e - p o o l i n g s t a t u t e , which has d i f f e r e n t 

reference now, but i t ' s s u b s t a n t i a l l y the same as we have 

i t now. What they were t a l k i n g about i n t h a t case i s an 

appeal of a Commission order. The f a t a l f l a w i n t h a t case 

i s , the Commission f a i l e d t o make a f i n d i n g as t o waste, 

and t h a t ' s why the deci s i o n was overturned. 

But i n addressing the components of the problem, 

the New Mexico Supreme Court s a i d , unquestionably, the 

Commission i s authorized t o r e q u i r e the p o o l i n g of pr o p e r t y 

where p o o l i n g has not been agreed upon by the p a r t i e s . 
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And i t i s also c l e a r from Subsection E of the 

same s e c t i o n we're t a l k i n g about t h a t any agreement between 

owners and leaseholders may be modified by the Commission. 

I n doing so, however, your a u t h o r i t y i s such t h a t i t must 

be p r e d i c a t e d on the prevention of waste. 

This 1953 agreement d i d not provide f o r the 

i n f i l l w e l l . There i s no agreement on t h a t . We're saying 

t h a t we ought t o be able t o implement and use the Rules of 

the D i v i s i o n . And i f you can't do i t , then p r i v a t e 

c o n t r a c t s are going t o be allowed t o p r e v a i l over OCD 

Rules. 

I f you bel i e v e Mr. Condon and Mr. Carr, then t h a t 

argument i s equa l l y a p p l i c a b l e , should the p a r t i e s agree t o 

s o l u t i o n s as t o other items, i n a d d i t i o n t o w e l l d e n s i t y . 

How about w e l l locations? How about producing allowables? 

How about g a s - o i l r a t i o s ? How about anything p r i v a t e 

p a r t i e s could do t h a t would m a t e r i a l l y a f f e c t the pool 

r u l e s and what you can do under those pool rules? 

The process comes t o a screeching h a l t i f p r i v a t e 

p a r t i e s can reach agreements t h a t are i n c o n s i s t e n t w i t h or 

co n t r a r y t o the development of the r u l e s adopted by the 

Commission. 

The s o l u t i o n i s t o apply the c o n s t r u c t i o n t h a t 

Sims-Mechem gives you and t o look at your s t a t u t o r y 

a u t h o r i t y . 
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Mr. Carr says we have done t h i s before and l o s t 

on my argument. That's not t r u e . 

The argument t h a t Mr. Carr and I had a few years 

ago, or l a s t year, w i t h the Santa Fe and the P h i l l i p s deal 

i s a d i f f e r e n t issue. That d e a l t w i t h a nonprorated Morrow 

gas w e l l i n southeastern New Mexico on statewide r u l e s 

where you and I both know you can only d r i l l a s i n g l e w e l l 

under those r u l e s . 

The dispute i n t h a t s e c t i o n was, t h e r e had y e t t o 

be d r i l l e d a Morrow gas w e l l . Santa Fe wanted an 

o r i e n t a t i o n of the west h a l f of the s e c t i o n . P h i l l i p s on a 

v o l u n t a r y basis could form a south-half spacing u n i t , f o r 

which t h e r e need t o be no compulsory p o o l i n g , and they 

accomplished t h a t . And the D i v i s i o n says, No, you have 

formed a v o l u n t a r y agreement c o n s i s t e n t w i t h our spacing 

r u l e s on 320, the south-half spacing u n i t f o r P h i l l i p s 

stands, the Santa Fe a p p l i c a t i o n t o f o r c e pool, then, has 

now been pre-empted by an agreement t h a t ' s c o n s i s t e n t w i t h 

our r u l e s . 

The problem here i n t h i s case we're l o o k i n g a t 

now i s , the agreement i s i n c o n s i s t e n t w i t h the r u l e s you 

now have before you w i t h regards t o i n f i l l d r i l l i n g . 

The issue of an o p t i o n a l w e l l , I t h i n k , i s a red 

h e r r i n g . The o r i g i n a l w e l l i s always an o p t i o n a l w e l l . 

Nobody compels these people t o d r i l l these w e l l s . They're 
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a l l o p t i o n a l . What we would l i k e t o do i s exercise our 

o p t i o n . 

And the only method a v a i l a b l e t o us i s f o r c e -

p o o l i n g , because back i n January of 1993 we f i r s t proposed 

t o these p a r t i e s an i n f i l l w e l l i n the west h a l f of t h i s 

s e c t i o n . 

Mr. Carr says we've sprung i t on them a t the l a s t 

minute, and they need some more time, we d i d n ' t p l a y f a i r . 

That's j u s t nonsense. 

We've negotiated w i t h h i s c l i e n t f o r months. 

We've made r e v i s i o n s t o the operating agreement, the new 

j o i n t o p e r a t i n g agreement, because they are suggesting 

them, and we made some compromises. The end r e s u l t of i t 

i s t h a t they advised us t h a t t h e i r economics d i d n ' t j u s t i f y 

them p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n the i n f i l l w e l l and they wouldn't do 

i t . 

Mr. Alexander w i l l t e s t i f y , i f you w i l l a l l o w 

him, t h a t a f t e r the January, 1993, l e t t e r he had subsequent 

conversations and proposals t o both Hartman and Texaco, now 

Four Star, f o r the d r i l l i n g of an i n f i l l w e l l . 

The process i s a c o n t i n u i n g , e v o l v i n g one. 

Because of the time involved the costs, f o r t u n a t e l y , are 

now less than o r i g i n a l l y proposed. We i n t e n d t o show you 

t h a t . This quarter s e c t i o n has a d i f f i c u l t topographic 

problem. The BLM has asked us t o move the w e l l . We have 
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f i n a l l y found the place t h a t accommodates t h e i r request, 

and we're moving the w e l l . 

There's been no issue w i t h any of these people as 

t o the w e l l l o c a t i o n . They simply want t o hide behind the 

o l d 1953 agreement t o preclude i t from happening. We t h i n k 

t h a t ' s not f a i r , i t ' s i n a p p r o p r i a t e , and you have the 

a u t h o r i t y t o give us a s o l u t i o n . We're not asking you t o 

i n t e r p r e t c o n t r a c t s or anything else. There's no disput e 

about t h i s c o n t r a c t . I t simply provided f o r the o r i g i n a l 

w e l l i n 1953. 

We're asking you t o give us the r i g h t under your 

a u t h o r i t y t o d r i l l the i n f i l l w e l l , under the standard 

p r o v i s i o n s t h a t you u t i l i z e i n compulsory p o o l i n g and t h a t 

you have the a u t h o r i t y t o modify these agreements t h a t 

p r i o r t o p a r t i e s enter i n t o when they're i n c o n s i s t e n t w i t h 

your r u l e s and r e g u l a t i o n s , and t h i s one i s . 

Explain t o me how else we can ever get t h i s w e l l 

d r i l l e d . A small, teeny percentage of a working i n t e r e s t 

owner w i l l f r u s t r a t e the process, and i n doing so they w i l l 

cause waste, and they are going t o impair our c o r r e l a t i v e 

r i g h t s because we're about t o show you an i n f i l l w e l l t h a t 

has every r i g h t t o be d r i l l e d and produced. 

Thank you. 

MR. CONDON: May we — 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. Carr? 
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MR. CARR: Mr. Stogner, the question was, how 

w i l l we ever d r i l l unless you come i n and abrogate our 

contr a c t ? And the answer i s , you l i v e under the c o n t r a c t 

and r e n e g o t i a t e . 

To suggest t h a t because i n 1993 you were t a l k i n g 

about an i n f i l l w e l l t h a t would r e q u i r e amendments t o the 

JOA i s not the same as coming forward w i t h a s p e c i f i c 

proposal. 

And t h a t ' s what happened here. There were 

n e g o t i a t i o n s a couple of years ago, a long break i n the 

p a t t e r n , and then, boom, a proposed w e l l . I t was received 

the same day the pooli n g a p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d . We submit 

t h a t t h a t i s not go o d - f a i t h n e g o t i a t i o n f o r the d r i l l i n g of 

t h i s s p e c i f i c w e l l a t t h i s l o c a t i o n , and i t i s a b s o l u t e l y 

i n c o n s i s t e n t w i t h p r i o r r u l i n g s of the D i v i s i o n when 

p a r t i e s d i d not a t l e a s t negotiate concerning a s p e c i f i c 

w e l l before they came rushing i n w i t h an a p p l i c a t i o n f o r 

f o r c e p o o l i n g . 

Mr. K e l l a h i n says the case between P h i l l i p s and 

Santa Fe was d i f f e r e n t . I would submit t o you t h a t i t was 

ex a c t l y the issue t h a t ' s before you here today. I don't 

t h i n k t h e r e i s a question i n t h a t case, or here, or there's 

a d i s t i n c t i o n between one w e l l and two w e l l s . That's not 

the issue. 

The issue i s , there's a s t a t u t e , and the O i l and 
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Gas Act defines and i t l i m i t s what t h i s D i v i s i o n may do. 

And when you read the po o l i n g p r o v i s i o n s i t says, where the 

p a r t i e s agree t o develop t h e i r lands you don't have the 

r i g h t t o invoke the p o l i c e power of the s t a t e and combine 

these t r a c t s . The t r a c t s have been combined. 

And t o suggest t h a t there i s a c o n f l i c t between 

the r u l e s , the i n f i l l d r i l l i n g order, and the c o n t r a c t 

between the p a r t i e s i s l u d i c r o u s , because your i n f i l l order 

doesn't say ye s h a l l d r i l l an i n f i l l w e l l ; i t says you may. 

And before you do, you've got t o t r y and l i v e w i t h your 

agreements w i t h the people i n these spacing u n i t s t h a t you 

are working w i t h under c o n t r a c t s , you've got t o attempt t o 

honor those c o n t r a c t s . 

The c o n t r a c t s provide f o r -- have p r o v i s i o n s i n 

i t , the ope r a t i n g agreement, t o terminate i t by mutual 

agreement of the p a r t i e s . I f not, i t has a l i f e t h a t goes 

on — the same l i f e as the com agreement. 

But the bottom l i n e i s t h a t you're not asked t o 

get i n t o these and you're not asked t o s t a r t i n t e r p r e t i n g 

the c o n t r a c t , though what you're t o l d i s t h a t you don't 

come i n and r e w r i t e the c o n t r a c t f o r the p a r t i e s . That's 

very simply what you're being asked t o do here today. 

They're asking you t o come i n , they're asking you 

t o change the deal, add t o the deal, and do so i n a 

s i t u a t i o n where we f i n d ourselves being here today, and 
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being c a l l e d here today on the very day the w e l l was 

proposed t o us. 

We t h i n k t h a t i s i n c o n s i s t e n t w i t h the s t a t u t e , 

one, because there i s a vo l u n t a r y agreement f o r the 

development of these lands, i t doesn't say f o r the d r i l l i n g 

of a w e l l . And there also has been a f a i l u r e on the p a r t 

of Meridian t o come forward w i t h a s p e c i f i c w e l l proposal 

and n e g o t i a t e t h a t out w i t h us i n g o o d - f a i t h f a s h i o n . 

That's our argument. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Thank you, Mr. Carr. 

Mr. Condon? 

MR. CONDON: Yeah, Mr. Examiner, I j u s t want t o 

respond t o a couple of p o i n t s . 

F i r s t , i t i s an absolute r e d - h e r r i n g issue t o 

argue t o the D i v i s i o n and the Examiner t h a t by acceding t o 

the p a r t i e s ' p r i v a t e c o n t r a c t you're somehow going t o allow 

p a r t i e s t o circumvent and over r i d e the OCD's r u l e s and 

r e g u l a t i o n s . That i s not t r u e . There i s nothing 

i n c o n s i s t e n t w i t h the OCD r u l e s and r e g u l a t i o n s i n having 

t h i s 320-acre p r o r a t i o n u n i t operate w i t h one w e l l . 

There's nothing i n c o n s i s t e n t about t h a t . 

So we're not coming i n and asking you t o 

aut h o r i z e p r i v a t e p a r t i e s t o circumvent the r u l e s and 

r e g u l a t i o n s of the OCD; we're simply saying where the r e i s 

a p r i v a t e agreement t h a t i s co n s i s t e n t w i t h OCD r u l e s and 
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regs and the s t a t u t e s , which i s the case here, t h a t the 

D i v i s i o n should not step i n and attempt t o r e w r i t e the 

c o n t r a c t . 

Second, Mr. K e l l a h i n has said t h a t i f you don't 

a u t h o r i z e t h e i r request f o r the D i v i s i o n t o r e w r i t e the 

p a r t i e s ' c o n t r a c t , where the p a r t i e s have already agreed t o 

pool t h e i r i n t e r e s t s , then the w e l l can never be d r i l l e d . 

Well, t h a t ' s simply not t r u e . And i n f a c t , I 

don't t h i n k t h a t Meridian or Mr. K e l l a h i n i s going t o put 

on a shred of evidence today t o i n d i c a t e t o you t h a t any 

p a r t y has said f o r a l l time, under a l l circumstances, no 

matter what you show us i n terms of the economics of a 

proposed i n f i l l w e l l or no matter what terms you propose i n 

terms of a p o t e n t i a l m o d i f i c a t i o n of the e x i s t i n g agreement 

or a proposed new j o i n t operating agreement, we are never 

going t o agree t o the d r i l l i n g of an i n f i l l w e l l on t h i s 

u n i t . There's no evidence of t h a t . 

What's happened here i s t h a t Meridian simply has 

not sat down w i t h everybody and said, what do want? What 

i s i t going t o take? Maybe you're not ready now; we are. 

But what would i t take t o get you t o agree w i t h us on the 

d r i l l i n g of an i n f i l l well? Under what c o n d i t i o n s would 

you a u t h o r i z e that? Under what s o r t of new j o i n t o p e rating 

agreement would you agree t o the d r i l l i n g of a second w e l l 

on t h i s t r a c t ? 
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They've simply s a i d , Here are our terms and 

c o n d i t i o n s , sign t h i s new j o i n t o perating agreement, or 

else we're going t o force-pool. And t h a t ' s — a t l e a s t 

as — from Hartman's p o s i t i o n , e x a c t l y what has happened 

v i s - a - v i s r e l a t i o n s h i p s w i t h Meridian. 

Meridian has two choices under which they can 

d r i l l the w e l l . 

Number one, they can negot i a t e and they can b r i n g 

the p a r t i e s i n and they can make a g o o d - f a i t h e f f o r t t o say 

what w i l l i t take t o get t h i s well? That does not r e q u i r e 

the D i v i s i o n t o act or t o step i n and r e w r i t e a p r i v a t e 

c o n t r a c t . 

Second, Meridian could always simply go out and 

d r i l l the w e l l . What they would have t o do under those 

circumstances, they would, you know, p o s s i b l y subject 

themselves t o l e g a l a c t i o n i f what they were doing was 

i n c o n s i s t e n t w i t h the present operating agreement. 

Or they could simply d r i l l the w e l l and c a r r y the 

i n t e r e s t s of a l l of the i n t e r e s t owners who do not agree t o 

d r i l l t h a t w e l l . And i f i t ' s such a great w e l l , they 

shouldn't have any concern about doing t h a t . 

The f a c t of the matter i s , what they want i s , 

they want an order a u t h o r i z i n g them t o do t h a t , w i t h 

p e n a l t y p r o v i s i o n s , so t h a t they can e f f e c t i v e l y e x t i n g u i s h 

the i n t e r e s t s of nonconsent working i n t e r e s t owners i n t h i s 
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t r a c t . 

And t h a t ' s j u s t not advisable. Mr. Hartman has 

even i n d i c a t e d t o Meridian t h a t i f they wish t o go out and 

d r i l l the w e l l w i t h him as a nonconsent working i n t e r e s t 

owner, w i t h o u t penalty p r o v i s i o n s , because th e r e are no 

penal t y p r o v i s i o n s i n the present j o i n t o p e r a t i n g agreement 

under which Meridian i s operating t h i s p r o p e r t y , they can 

do t h a t , they c a r r y h i s i n t e r e s t , and as soon as the 

reasonable cost of d r i l l i n g i s reimbursed, then everybody 

shares i n revenue. 

And t h a t would c e r t a i n l y be a much b e t t e r r e s u l t 

i n a case l i k e t h i s than t o come i n and ask the D i v i s i o n t o 

r e w r i t e the p a r t i e s ' c o n t r a c t . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Thank you, Mr. Condon. 

Mr. C a r r o l l ? 

MR. CARROLL: Yeah, I have a few questions. 

Mr. Carr and Mr. Condon, I take i t i t ' s your 

p o s i t i o n t h a t the 1953 agreements c o n s t i t u t e the p l a n of 

development or plan of operation f o r t h i s p r o p e r t y and t h a t 

the OCD should not f o o l around w i t h t h a t plan? 

MR. CARR: I t i s my p o s i t i o n t h a t the 1953 

communitization agreement i s a v o l u n t a r y agreement, 

enforceable, v a l i d and binding these p a r t i e s , combining the 

i n t e r e s t s i n the east h a l f of t h a t s e c t i o n , t h a t the 

op e r a t i n g agreement sets f o r t h a plan of development and 
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t h a t those agreements are enforceable, they are the 

agreements upon which and based on which Meridian operates 

those p r o p e r t i e s today, they are v a l i d and they stand, and 

as such, the lands are not a v a i l a b l e f o r p o o l i n g . That's 

the p o s i t i o n . 

And i f they are t o be amended, i f they are t o be 

modi f i e d , the very minimum we're e n t i t l e d t o i s an 

op p o r t u n i t y t o s i t down and t a l k w i t h o u t a p o o l i n g case 

hanging over our head, and t h a t d i d not occur. 

MR. CARROLL: Mr. Carr, I've looked a t the f o r c e -

p o o l i n g s t a t u t e , p a r t i c u l a r l y Subsection E, and we're 

expressly given the a u t h o r i t y t o modify any such pl a n . 

MR. CARR: To modify — 

MR. CARROLL: — a plan of development. And I 

would take t h a t t o mean an operating agreement or a 

communitization agreement. 

MR. CARR: And i f you do t h a t before t h e r e has 

been a g o o d - f a i t h e f f o r t t o n e g o t i a t e f o r the d r i l l i n g of a 

w e l l , I submit t h a t the D i v i s i o n i s a c t i n g outside the 

a u t h o r i t y granted t o i t by Subsection E, and t h a t ' s what's 

happening here. 

MR. CARROLL: You don't d i s a g r e e w i t h our 

a u t h o r i t y t o modify any such plan under Subsection E, do 

you? 

MR. CARR: I t h i n k you can modify a plan , but i t 
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needs t o be co n s i s t e n t w i t h your s t a t u t o r y a u t h o r i t y , and 

t h a t ' s the problem here. 

MR. CARROLL: Yeah, as long as i t prevents waste 

we can modify the plan, and i t ' s apparent t o me t h a t 

Meridian i s saying a second w e l l i s necessary i n order t o 

recover reserves t h a t would be l e f t w i t h o u t t h i s second 

w e l l . 

MR. CARR: You are t a k i n g a p r i v a t e c o n t r a c t and 

modifying i t i n the context of a poo l i n g hearing t h a t must 

be dismissed because i t was not p r o p e r l y brought i n the 

f i r s t instance. 

I can t e l l you here and now t h a t i f we had an 

op p o r t u n i t y t o s i t down and negoti a t e w i t h o u t having a 

sword over our head, i t i s e n t i r e l y p o s s i b l e t h a t you 

wouldn't have t o become involved a t a l l . 

But when you act and go forward under the p o o l i n g 

s t a t u t e , under t h i s s e c t i o n of the O i l and Gas Act, I t h i n k 

i t i s a b s o l u t e l y e s s e n t i a l t h a t before the p o l i c e power of 

the s t a t e i s invoked, before you s t a r t r e w r i t i n g p r i v a t e 

c o n t r a c t , t h a t p r o c e d u r a l l y those who ask you t o do i t are 

re q u i r e d t o give us i n good f a i t h an o p p o r t u n i t y t o 

ne g o t i a t e . 

That d i d n ' t happen here, and i t ' s i n c o n s i s t e n t 

w i t h what was done between Maralo and Bass about 15 months 

ago. 
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MR. CARROLL: And t h a t brings i n my second 

question. Mr. K e l l a h i n --

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . 

MR. CARROLL: — the Examiner and I are very 

concerned about t h i s apparent 2-1/2-year gap — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . 

MR. CARROLL: — between n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h Four 

Star and Hartman. 

Are you going t o present evidence as t o 

n e g o t i a t i o n s t h a t have occurred between the l e t t e r of A p r i l 

12th, 1993, and the a p p l i c a t i o n f i l e d on October 31st, 

1995? 

MR. KELLAHIN: The e x h i b i t book w i l l c o n t a i n 

correspondence between Meridian and Texaco w i t h regards t o 

the 1993 proposal. The f i n a l response from Texaco, as w i t h 

regards t o t h a t i n f i l l , was September 30th of 1993, i n 

which they s a i d the p r o j e c t d i d n ' t meet t h e i r minimum 

economics. 

Mr. Hartman never responded t o any of our 

proposals of 1993. The f i r s t proposal l e t t e r was one where 

he got an AFE, enclosed a new j o i n t o p e r ating agreement, i t 

i n v i t e d him t o consider i t , i t asked him t o c a l l i f he had 

any questions, i t was a p o l i t e i n t r o d u c t i o n t o commence 

n e g o t i a t i o n s , and he elected not t o do so. 

MR. CARROLL: That was over two years ago? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

30 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . On October 31st of 

1995, the w e l l was — proposal was r e i n i t i a t e d . The 

m o d i f i c a t i o n involves an AFE t h a t over time and Meridian's 

e f f o r t s i s now less than the f i r s t one, and a moving of the 

l o c a t i o n t o a b e t t e r p o s i t i o n i n the southeast q u a r t e r . 

The p o o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d on November 

8th , r e q u e s t i n g a hearing on December 7th. I t has been 

continued on two d i f f e r e n t occasions, once t o accommodate 

Mr. Condon's schedule and once t o allow a t Texaco's request 

a d d i t i o n a l time t o examine t h e i r p o s i t i o n . 

We t h i n k t h a t i f you dismiss i t on the grounds of 

not s u f f i c i e n t time t o negotiate i t , i t ' s not very 

meaningful, because as I understand i t today, a d d i t i o n a l 

time i s not going t o resolve t h i s problem. 

I f you desire us t o have f u r t h e r n e g o t i a t i o n s , we 

would be more than happy t o do t h a t . I f t h a t ' s what you 

would l i k e us t o do, we w i l l do t h a t . 

We t h i n k a t t h i s p o i n t there was no purpose i n 

going forward w i t h n e g o t i a t i o n s because both Hartman and 

Texaco were standing behind the f a c t t h a t they d i d n ' t t h i n k 

they had t o t a l k t o us. The 1953 agreement gave them an 

absolute veto over the p r o j e c t . 

And i f your d e c i s i o n i s t h a t you have a u t h o r i t y 

and t h a t t h i s w e l l proposal i s c o n s i s t e n t w i t h the c u r r e n t 

w e l l p l a n , and i f t h a t ' s your d e c i s i o n , i t c e r t a i n l y may 
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break the logjam t h a t c u r r e n t l y e x i s t s between these 

p a r t i e s , and we c e r t a i n l y would be w i l l i n g t o t a l k about 

n e g o t i a t i o n s i f there's any expectation t h a t t h a t might 

come t o some s o l u t i o n . But t h a t ' s where we are. 

MR. CARROLL: Well, t h a t gets back t o my question 

about — you referenced the September 30, 1993, l e t t e r — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . 

MR. CARROLL: — and what's the record of 

communications between the p a r t i e s between September 30, 

1993, and October 31st, 1995? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I'm sorr y , I don't mean t o 

misspeak. Let me make sure. 

(Off the record) 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Alexander t e l l s me — I'm 

so r r y . 

(Off the record) 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. I t w i l l 

be Mr. Alexander's testimony t h a t a f t e r the September, 

1993, l e t t e r , h i s next w r i t t e n communication t o the p a r t i e s 

was t he October, 1995, l e t t e r , t h a t d u r i n g t h a t t r a n s i t i o n 

p e r i o d he had some conversations on the phone w i t h the 

vari o u s p a r t i e s , he was able t o s u c c e s s f u l l y get Williams 

Operating t o commit t h e i r share t o a new j o i n t o p e r a t i n g 

agreement. There's another p a r t y t h a t ' s agreed w i t h our 
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p o s i t i o n . 

But i n terms of formal l e t t e r s , t here i s a gap i n 

the correspondence, and h e ' l l admit t h a t there's no w r i t t e n 

communication between those two periods. 

MR. CARROLL: I s there a dispute as t o o r a l 

communications between the p a r t i e s i n t h i s gap? 

MR. CARR: I have no knowledge of them. And I'm 

not saying they d i d n ' t occur; I'm saying I have no 

knowledge. 

MR. CONDON: I have no knowledge. I mean, I 

don't t h i n k there was any communication between Hartman and 

Meridian a f t e r the f i r s t l e t t e r went out, e a r l y 1993, u n t i l 

r e c e i p t of the October 31, 1995, l e t t e r and the r e v i s e d 

proposal. 

And I would also j u s t r a i s e — On the question of 

t i m i n g and why i t i s t h a t we have t o rush i n t o do 

something r i g h t now on t h i s i n f i l l w e l l , where Meridian 

claims t h a t the basis of a u t h o r i t y f o r t h a t i s a 1974 

r e g u l a t i o n t h a t p ermitted the d r i l l i n g of an o p t i o n a l 

second w e l l , no a c t i o n was taken f o r 19 years a f t e r 1974, a 

l e t t e r i s sent out, n e g o t i a t i o n s , perhaps, occurred between 

Meridian and Texaco f o r some pe r i o d of time, and then two 

years elapsed, and a second proposal i s sent out i n an area 

where the 1974 order a u t h o r i z i n g the d r i l l i n g of a second 

i n f i l l w e l l , as I understand i t , i s based upon a f i n d i n g 
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t h a t one w e l l on a 320-acre p r o r a t i o n u n i t probably i n a 

l o t of cases can't e f f e c t i v e l y d r a i n the e n t i r e 320 acres. 

I t ' s not l i k e there are c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s t h a t 

need t o be pro t e c t e d , because t h i s gas i s going somewhere, 

i t ' s j u s t t h e r e , and i t ' s j u s t a question of when i t ' s 

going t o be developed. 

MR. CARR: Mr. Stogner, i f I could j u s t make one 

more statement? 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay. 

MR. CARR: I n September of 1993, Four Star 

advised Meridian t h a t the proposal f o r an i n f i l l w e l l on 

t h i s t r a c t d i d n ' t meet i t s economic requirements. A w e l l 

was then proposed 25 months l a t e r w i t h a lower AFE at a new 

l o c a t i o n . I submit t h a t ' s a new proposal. 

And when you do t h a t , there must be n e g o t i a t i o n 

before they t r y and ask you t o invoke the p o l i c e power of 

the s t a t e . 

And when they come i n t h a t posture, you should 

f o l l o w what t h i s D i v i s i o n d i d i n the Maralo-Bass case, and 

you should say, Your a p p l i c a t i o n must be dismissed, you 

must n e g o t i a t e , i f you can't reach v o l u n t a r y agreement then 

you must r e f i l e . 

And i f t h a t happens and we come before you and 

the r e are questions about whether the agreement needs t o be 

amended pursuant t o Subsection E of t h i s s e c t i o n , a t l e a s t 
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i t comes before you i n the proper posture, and t h a t i s i n 

harmony w i t h the p r o v i s i o n s of Section C, i n the context of 

a p r o p e r l y brought before you po o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n . 

That's our p o s i t i o n . 

(Off the record) 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. K e l l a h i n — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: — when you r e f e r t o Mr. 

Alexander's testimony, i s he going t o t e s t i f y as t o the 

land matters and the n e g o t i a t i o n s between the p a r t i e s and 

the f o r c e - p o o l i n g p r o v i s i o n s — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: — the v o l u n t a r y agreements 

p r i o r t o t h a t point? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r , i t ' s t o be p a r t of h i s 

testimony t o go through the land h i s t o r y of t h i s p r o p e r t y 

as an expert t o t a l k — He was involved i n a l l the 

n e g o t i a t i o n s from 1993 forward, and he w i l l t e s t i f y on t h a t 

issue. 

But he's going t o admit t o you what we've already 

discussed, t h a t the cu r r e n t proposal, i f i t ' s of importance 

t o you, i s a t a d i f f e r e n t l o c a t i o n i n t h e s o u t h e a s t q u a r t e r 

of the s e c t i o n , and the AFE was modified from the — 

o r i g i n a l l y submitted, and i s some, I t h i n k , $20,000 l e s s . 

And i f those are c r i t i c a l l y important, t h a t ' s what h e ' l l 
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t e l l you. 

EX/AMINER STOGNER: Mr. Condon, your witness i s 

going t o — 

MR. CONDON: Dana Delventhal, she's j u s t going t o 

discuss the AFE and the area and the f a c t t h a t i t ' s r e a l l y 

not much of a r i s k and perhaps w i t h not s u f f i c i e n t 

p o t e n t i a l reserve recovery t o j u s t i f y a penalty p r o v i s i o n 

and t o perhaps question t o some extent the AFE. 

MR. CARROLL: I s she the person t h a t Mr. 

Alexander was n e g o t i a t i n g w i t h or t a l k i n g — 

MR. CONDON: No, I have nobody here t o t e s t i f y on 

ne g o t i a t i o n s , although I t h i n k t h a t we can get t h a t through 

Mr. Alexander. 

I've got one l e t t e r t h a t Mr. Hartman wrote, dated 

November 15, 1995, upon r e c e i p t of the October 31, 1995, 

l e t t e r from Meridian, and a new AFE and the new proposed 

j o i n t o p e rating agreement f o r the Seymour 7A w e l l . 

And I bel i e v e t h a t ' s the only — the two l e t t e r s 

from Meridian and the response l e t t e r from Hartman, t o my 

understanding, are the only communications between Meridian 

and Hartman t o date on the issue. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: At t h i s p o i n t , I'm going t o 

e l e c t t o delay any motion -- I mean, any d e c i s i o n upon the 

motion, and at t h i s time allow Mr. K e l l a h i n t o b r i n g Mr. 

Alexander up on the witness stand so we can question him. 
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So at t h i s time l e t ' s swear Mr. Alexander i n as 

an expert witness. 

(Thereupon, the witness was sworn.) 

MR. KELLAHIN: C l a r i f i c a t i o n , Mr. Examiner. Mr. 

Alexander was t o have a r a t h e r involved p r e s e n t a t i o n w i t h 

regards t o the h i s t o r y of the property. 

I f you want him t o address the n e g o t i a t i o n s from 

January of 1993 forward, w e ' l l focus on t h a t . I f you want 

the background — I f you're i n t e r e s t e d i n the background of 

the h i s t o r y of the property, I ' l l need t o s t a r t before 

t h a t . 

So I need some d i r e c t i o n on what i t i s t h a t you 

would l i k e t o hear. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Let's hear about the 

n e g o t i a t i o n s around November, onwards, of 1993. 

MR. KELLAHIN: A l l r i g h t , s i r , l e t me see i f I 

can set the stage t o do t h a t . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Do you need some time? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No, s i r . 

ALAN ALEXANDER, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Alexander, f o r the record would you please 
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s t a t e your name and occupation? 

A. Yes, my name i s Alan Alexander. I c u r r e n t l y work 

f o r Meridian O i l , Inc., i n the Farmington, New Mexico, 

o f f i c e as a senior land advisor. 

Q. On p r i o r occasions, Mr. Alexander, have you 

q u a l i f i e d as an expert i n the f i e l d of petroleum land 

matters before the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n ? 

A. Yes, s i r , I have. 

Q. And your c u r r e n t employment w i t h your company has 

you r e s i d i n g i n Farmington, New Mexico? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. As p a r t of your r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s , have you 

informed y o u r s e l f and are you knowledgeable about the 

ownership w i t h regards t o the i n t e r e s t i n t h i s spacing 

u n i t ? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. I n a d d i t i o n , have you examined w i t h your 

e x p e r t i s e a l l the documents a v a i l a b l e t o you w i t h regards 

t o the h i s t o r y of the development t h a t occurred under t h i s 

o l d o p e r a t i n g agreement and any other r e l a t e d document? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. And were you the landman p r i m a r i l y r e sponsible 

f o r your company t o i n i t i a t e n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h the working 

i n t e r e s t owners, when your t e c h n i c a l people decided t h a t 

they would l i k e t o have an i n f i l l w e l l d r i l l e d i n t h i s 
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spacing u n i t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And have you continued through the present day 

from the i n i t i a l n e g o t i a t i o n s t o address the n e g o t i a t i o n 

issue? 

A. Yes, I have. 

MR. KELLAHIN: We tender Mr. Alexander as an 

expert witness. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Any objection? 

MR. CARR: No o b j e c t i o n . 

MR. CONDON: No. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Alexander, l e t ' s set the 

stage, i f you w i l l , s i r . Let's — 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Do you want t o pass those out? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r , l e t me make sure I've 

got the r i g h t e x h i b i t books, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I don't mean t o rush you. 

MR. KELLAHIN: You've got your set? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, I do. 

Q. (By Mr. Ke l l a h i n ) Let me ask you t o t u r n t o the 

f i r s t d i s p l a y a f t e r E x h i b i t Tab Number 7, Mr. Alexander, 

and l e t ' s l o c a t e and o r i e n t the Examiner t o the pro p e r t y . 

Let's take a moment and have you i d e n t i f y and describe the 

c o l o r codes and the i n f o r m a t i o n shown on t h i s e x h i b i t . 

A. This e x h i b i t consists of a township p l a t , land 
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p l a t , t h a t d e p i c t s the acreage i n t h i s Township of 31 

North, 9 West, t h a t was subject t o the o r i g i n a l c o n t r a c t s 

among the p a r t i e s back i n the 1952-53 time frame. 

I t shows the d r i l l i n g blocks t h a t were subject t o 

the o l d e r c o n t r a c t s , and i t shows the parent w e l l s and the 

i n f i l l w e l l s t h a t were e v e n t u a l l y d r i l l e d on a l l of t h i s 

acreage. 

The red haching denotes i n f i l l w e l l s t h a t were 

d r i l l e d under j o i n t operating agreements t h a t were entered 

i n t o by the p a r t i e s a f t e r they, i n my o p i n i o n , became aware 

t h a t the o l d 1953 j o i n t operating agreement t h a t was 

a c t u a l l y attached t o a farmout agreement was i n a p p r o p r i a t e 

and could not be used t o handle the i n f i l l s i t u a t i o n s . 

Q. Let me summarize i t f o r you. I f we look at the 

d i s p l a y , the subject spacing u n i t we're debating now i s 

shaded w i t h the green hached l i n e i n the east h a l f of 23? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. The other areas t h a t have the diagonal red hach 

marks going i n the opposite d i r e c t i o n , how do they r e l a t e 

t o the east h a l f of 23? 

A. They're simply a p a r t of the o r i g i n a l c o n t r a c t 

lands, and t h a t they a l l — the c o n t r a s t here i s t h a t a l l 

of those spacing u n i t s have been f u l l y developed, and the 

green hached — the Seymour 7A spacing u n i t has not been 

f u l l y developed. 
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Q. Under t h i s farmout area development pl a n , the 

green area was p a r t of the area t h a t ' s shaded i n , w i t h the 

red hached l i n e ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i n a l l other instances, there was an i n f i l l 

w e l l d r i l l e d except f o r the east h a l f of 23? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, l e t ' s go back now and t a l k about 

s p e c i f i c proposals f o r the i n f i l l w e l l i n the east h a l f of 

23. And i f y o u ' l l s t a r t , Mr. Alexander, by t u r n i n g t o 

E x h i b i t Tab 4, l e t ' s look a t the f i r s t proposal. 

I s t h i s the l e t t e r t h a t you sent t o the i n t e r e s t 

owners, working i n t e r e s t owners i n the spacing u n i t ? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. How d i d you determine t h a t these were the 

appr o p r i a t e i n t e r e s t owners i n the east h a l f of 23? 

A. By a t i t l e review. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Give us a quick summary of how these 

p a r t i e s came t o be working i n t e r e s t owners, as you know 

them, from those t h a t were the o r i g i n a l p a r t i e s t o the 1953 

agreement. 

A. I went back i n t o the records t o determine how 

t h i s c o n t r a c t i n i t i a l l y came about and the subsequent 

p a r t i e s t h a t operated under these c o n t r a c t s . 

Q. When you look a t t h a t , what types of leases were 
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you d e a l i n g w i t h i n the east h a l f of 23? 

A. These are f e d e r a l leaseholds. 

Q. And how many f e d e r a l leases were you wo r r i e d 

about i n the east h a l f ? 

A. There's two f e d e r a l leaseholds t h a t make up t h i s 

d r i l l block. 

Q. And how were they d i v i d e d i n the east h a l f ? 

A. One f e d e r a l leasehold c o n s i s t s of the northeast 

q u a r t e r , and the other f e d e r a l leasehold c o n s i s t s of the 

southeast q u a r t e r . 

Q. Who o r i g i n a l l y d r i l l e d the well? 

A. The o r i g i n a l w e l l was d r i l l e d by Southern Union 

Gas Company, I be l i e v e . 

Q. And t h a t was d r i l l e d i n the northeast q u a r t e r of 

the section? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . At t h a t time, who were the i n t e r e s t 

owners i n the southeast? 

A. When t h a t i n i t i a l parent w e l l was d r i l l e d ? 

Q. Yes, s i r . 

A. That would have been — I t would have been Arco 

or i t s predecessor i n i n t e r e s t , Western Na t u r a l Gas. I 

don't r e c a l l e x a c t l y which one of those p a r t i e s a t t h a t 

p o i n t i n time. 

Q. When we look a t the c u r r e n t ownership, then, how 
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i s the ownership d i v i d e d between Texaco, now Four Star, 

Hartman and Williams? 

A. The northeast quarter i s owned by — c u r r e n t l y 

owned by Meridian and Hartman, and the southeast q u a r t e r i s 

c u r r e n t l y owned by P h i l l i p s and Williams. 

Q. What are the percentages f o r W i l l i a m s , Hartman 

and Texaco? Do you r e c a l l ? 

A. Yes, s i r , I have a note here t h a t I can t e l l you 

t h a t . Percentages on the d r i l l block would c o n s i s t of 

Meridian owning 37.5 percent gross working i n t e r e s t ; Doyle 

Hartman, O i l Operator, 12.5 percent i n t e r e s t ; Williams 

Production Company, 9 percent; and Texaco In c . , back at the 

time — now t h a t i t ' s Four Star — i s 41 percent. 

Q. That i n f o r m a t i o n i s t a b u l a t e d behind E x h i b i t Tab 

Number 6, i s i t not, Mr. Alexander? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Describe the circumstances as you 

know them t o have e x i s t e d when you s t a r t e d the January 

27th, 1993, proposal f o r the w e l l . What were you provided? 

Were you given an AFE? 

A. Yes, s i r , we evaluated t h i s d r i l l block, because 

i t has undeveloped, and I was given the AFE t o contact our 

pa r t n e r s t o propose the i n f i l l w e l l , which I d i d do t h a t i n 

the 1993 l e t t e r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . W i t h i n the context of the 1993 l e t t e r 
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proposal, what were you p r o v i d i n g them? 

A. I was p r o v i d i n g them w i t h our l o c a t i o n t h a t we 

had a t the time, w i t h the AFE covering the d r i l l i n g of the 

w e l l , a n i n e - s e c t i o n p l a t so t h a t they could evaluate the 

w e l l and the o f f s e t t i n g p r o p e r t i e s . 

And I also informed them a t t h a t time t h a t the 

Seymour Number 7 w e l l was the only w e l l s u b j e c t t o the o l d 

op e r a t i n g agreement of 1953, i n my op i n i o n , and t h a t i t d i d 

not cover the d r i l l i n g of an i n f i l l w e l l and t h a t a new 

op e r a t i n g agreement would be needed i n order t o accomplish 

the d r i l l i n g of the i n f i l l w e l l . 

I also — 

Q. Go ahead. 

A. I'm sor r y . 

Q. With t h a t l e t t e r , d i d you include the documents 

t h a t are i n the e x h i b i t book behind t h a t cover l e t t e r ? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. I d e n t i f y and au t h e n t i c a t e those f o r us, i f you 

w i l l , please. 

A. The documents behind the l e t t e r would include our 

a u t h o r i t y f o r expenditure. And behind the a u t h o r i t y f o r 

e x p e n d i t u r e would be c o s t e s t i m a t e breakdowns f o r t a n g i b l e 

and i n t a n g i b l e f a c i l i t i e s cost, the n i n e - s e c t i o n land p l a t 

appears a f t e r the cost estimates, and then back i n E x h i b i t 

Number — behind E x h i b i t Number 5 would be the op e r a t i n g 
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agreement t h a t was fu r n i s h e d t o the p a r t i e s a t t h a t p o i n t 

i n time. 

Q. Okay. And then there's a p l a t i n the book i f 

we've got them c o l l a t e d c o r r e c t l y — I t h i n k my -- a f t e r 

the AFEs — 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — then there's a p l a t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And then a f t e r t h a t p l a t i s a l e t t e r dated March 

19th of 1993? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Do you f i n d t h a t i n your book? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , s i r . What happened, i f anything, 

a f t e r you sent the l e t t e r and before you received the March 

19th, 1993, l e t t e r from Texaco? Were the r e any telephone 

c a l l s , conversations or responses between you and these 

others d u r i n g t h a t p eriod of time? 

A. Not t h a t I r e c a l l . I t h i n k t h i s i s the f i r s t 

communication. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Describe your understanding of what 

Mr. Snure w i t h Texaco was asking you t o do i n the March 

19th, 1993, l e t t e r . 

A. He was asking us t o review our proposed o p e r a t i n g 

agreement t h a t we intended t o use on t h i s w e l l , and he 
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suggested c e r t a i n changes t o t h a t o p e rating agreement, t h a t 

were numbered 1 through 5. 

And then he also i n d i c a t e d t o us t h a t he may have 

some f u r t h e r changes t h a t he would want t o suggest i n p o i n t 

number 6 of h i s l e t t e r . 

Q. Other than amendments and m o d i f i c a t i o n s t o the 

op e r a t i n g agreement, d i d Mr. Snure r a i s e any o b j e c t i o n s 

w i t h regards t o the AFE or the w e l l l o c a t i o n or any other 

aspect, other than the language of the op e r a t i n g agreement? 

A. No, s i r , not at t h a t time. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , s i r , continue. What happened a f t e r 

the 19th — March 19th, 1993, l e t t e r ? 

A. We waited on the responses from the p a r t i e s , and 

having received none, then I d i d follow-up communication 

w i t h some more l e t t e r s , asking f o r t h e i r responses t o our 

proposal l e t t e r . And those l e t t e r s are attached i n the 

e x h i b i t book, being an A p r i l 12th, 1993, l e t t e r t o the 

p a r t n e r s . 

Q. By September 2nd of 1993, had you received any 

responses from Mr. Hartman? 

A. No, s i r , I had not. 

Q. You had the one comment from Texaco. Did you 

have anything from Williams? 

A. Nothing i n w r i t i n g from Williams a t t h i s p o i n t i n 

time. 
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Q. A l l r i g h t . What occurs a f t e r the September 2nd, 

1993, l e t t e r ? You have a September 2nd, 1993, l e t t e r t o an 

A l l e n Smith. Why was a l e t t e r sent t o Mr. Smith? 

A. I c a l l e d Mr. Hartman's o f f i c e , and I was 

i n s t r u c t e d t o d i r e c t my f u t u r e communications t o Mr. Smith, 

who was representing Mr. Hartman, and so I d i d t h a t . 

Q. And what i f anything d i d you and Mr. Smith 

discuss? 

A. At t h i s time, very l i t t l e , other than f u r n i s h i n g 

him w i t h the p r i o r i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t I had already f u r n i s h e d 

Mr. Hartman. 

Subsequent t o the September of 1993 l e t t e r , I d i d 

have several conversations w i t h Mr. Smith, mostly from me 

f o l l o w i n g up t o see i f we could get a response from Mr. 

Hartman. And i n one or two of those conversations he asked 

f o r some i n f o r m a t i o n which I d i d provide t o him, and I 

don't r e c a l l what t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n was at t h i s p o i n t i n 

time. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , s i r . What's the next correspondence 

e i t h e r you sent or you received w i t h regards t o t h i s t o p i c ? 

A. The next l e t t e r t h a t we have i n the booklet i s 

dated September the 3 0th, and i t ' s received from Texaco. 

And t h a t was the p o i n t i n time when Texaco n o t i f i e d us t h a t 

t h i s w e l l d i d not meet t h e i r economic requirements. And I 

assume from t h i s l e t t e r t h a t Texaco was not i n t e r e s t e d i n 
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j o i n i n g i n the w e l l . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , s i r , a f t e r t h a t what then d i d you do? 

A. From t h i s p o i n t i n time on, we continued t o work 

w i t h Williams and d i d get t h e i r j o i n d e r i n the w e l l . 

We were also working w i t h the Bureau of Land 

Management on the l o c a t i o n of the w e l l . There are some 

top o g r a p h i c a l issues t h a t needed t o be addressed, and we 

can t a l k about those l a t e r . 

Like I s a i d , I d i d have some subsequent 

conversations w i t h Mr. Smith i n an attempt t o t r y t o get 

them t o j o i n i n the w e l l , and I a n t i c i p a t e d t h a t I would 

have t o probably force-pool Texaco or t r y t o get them t o 

j o i n i n t o the w e l l , i n t o a nonconsent p o s i t i o n under the 

i n i t i a l o p e r ating agreement. 

Q. Well, the o r i g i n a l 1953 agreement d i d n ' t provide 

f o r any subsequent w e l l , d i d i t ? 

A. No, when I said the operating agreement, I'm 

r e f e r r i n g t o the operating agreement t h a t I proposed t o 

them, t h a t I would modify t h a t operating agreement and 

al l o w them t o go nonconsent under t h a t o p e r a t i n g agreement. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Then what then happened? 

A. We continued working w i t h the Bureau of Land 

Management on the l o c a t i o n , and we continued working the 

geology i n the area. 

And we have, I b e l i e v e , reached a compromise w i t h 
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the Bureau of Land Management. They approved — i n i t i a l l y 

approved our l o c a t i o n i n the southeast-southeast q u a r t e r , 

but they l a t e r asked us t o re-evaluate t h a t and t o move 

t h a t l o c a t i o n , and — 

Q. Let's look a t t h a t map and touch on t h a t issue 

b r i e f l y . I f y o u ' l l look a t Tab 3 and the l i t t l e c olored 

map behind the e x h i b i t tab --

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — what i s the s i g n i f i c a n c e on t h a t d i s p l a y of 

the black c i r c l e w i t h the black dot i n the middle of i t , i n 

the southeast of 23? 

A. That's our cur r e n t proposed l o c a t i o n f o r the 

Seymour Number 7A w e l l . 

Q. And the o r i g i n a l l o c a t i o n was one t h a t the BLM 

had asked you t o move? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And t h i s l o c a t i o n , then, was i n response t o t h e i r 

d e s i r e t o have i t moved? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And i t ' s one t h a t ' s been approved by your 

t e c h n i c a l people i n terms of i t s geologic p o s i t i o n ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . When d i d you then contact any of 

these p a r t i e s again w i t h regards t o the d r i l l i n g of an 

i n f i l l w e l l i n the spacing u n i t ? 
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A. The next contact w i t h the p a r t i e s was the October 

l e t t e r t h a t I sent t o them, w i t h our updated j o i n t 

o p e r a t i n g agreement, and i t was updated because I thought 

t h a t Texaco, since they d i d n ' t want t o j o i n i n the p r o j e c t , 

might want t o — instead of being force-pooled, they would 

l i k e t o j o i n i n t h i s proposal of nonconsent, and I have 

language i n t h a t operating agreement t h a t allowed them t o 

do t h a t . 

And we d i d also f u r n i s h our must c u r r e n t AFE f o r 

the w e l l a t t h a t p o i n t i n time and again s o l i c i t e d 

responses on whether they would care t o j o i n i n the w e l l or 

not. 

And I asked — Since Williams d i d si g n the p r i o r 

o p e r a t i n g agreement t h a t I sent them, I asked them -- since 

t h e r e were some changes t o the operating agreement, on the 

language of a l l o w i n g Texaco or anybody else t o go 

nonconsent under the i n i t i a l w e l l , I asked them t o again 

s i g n the signature pages under t h i s v e r s i o n of the 

op e r a t i n g agreement. 

Q. The amendments you made i n the ope r a t i n g 

agreement from the o r i g i n a l proposal i n 1993 t o the 

r e v i s i o n s i n 1995, d i d you concede t o a l l t h e r e v i s i o n s 

t h a t Mr. Snure had asked you on behalf of Texaco t o make i n 

h i s March 19th, 1993, l e t t e r ? 

A. No, and the reason f o r t h a t i s , and I advised 
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Texaco, was t h a t we had — Williams and Meridian had 

already agreed t o execute the operating agreement as i t 

stood, and I was again asking them t o execute the operating 

agreement w i t h o u t any m o d i f i c a t i o n s , but I d i d modify t o 

the e x t e n t t h a t I would allow them t o go nonconsent under 

t h i s w e l l , under the operating agreement. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . As p a r t of the m o d i f i c a t i o n s t o your 

f i r s t proposal contained w i t h i n the October, 1993, l e t t e r , 

what d i d you provide the i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. I again provided them w i t h a — our r e v i s e d cost 

estimate, updated cost estimate, and the updated j o i n t 

o p e r a t i n g agreement. 

Q. I n response t o t h a t l e t t e r , d i d you r e c e i v e any 

communication from Mr. Hartman? 

A. The only -- I d i d receive a communication from 

Mr. Hartman. Mr. Hartman d i d send me a l e t t e r t h a t I 

b e l i e v e we do have i n the book, i n the e x h i b i t book. 

Q. Well, I'm not sure i t ' s i n my copy, but i t ' s 

c e r t a i n l y i n the record of the case, and — 

A. Yes, I don't have i t enclosed i n the e x h i b i t 

book — 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. — but I d i d receive w r i t t e n communication from 

Mr. Hartman. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , we can f i n d the l e t t e r and introduce 
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i t . 

But i n substance, what's your understanding and 

r e c o l l e c t i o n of h i s p o s i t i o n as he communicated i t t o you? 

A. I t was t h a t he was t a k i n g the p o s i t i o n t h a t the 

1953 o p e r a t i n g agreement covering the Seymour Number 7 w e l l 

c o n t r o l l e d i n t h i s instance, and t h a t — he i n d i c a t e d t h a t 

i f we d i d go ahead and d r i l l a w e l l on t h i s p r o p e r t y , t h a t 

he would be c a r r i e d f r e e of cost and be e n t i t l e d t o h i s 

revenue share from the w e l l . 

Q. What i f any response d i d you receive from Texaco 

t o your October 31st, 1995, l e t t e r ? 

A. I d i d receive a response from Texaco. 

Q. Yes, s i r , and what's your understanding of the 

p o s i t i o n they're t a k i n g i n the l e t t e r ? 

A. Their p o s i t i o n was s u b s t a n t i a l l y the same as Mr. 

Hartman's, t h a t they now f e l t t h a t the 1953 agreement 

c o n t r o l l e d the operations and t h a t they f e l t t h a t they d i d 

not have s u f f i c i e n t time t o reach a d e c i s i o n on our 

proposal. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Did you respond t o Mr. Snure's l e t t e r 

of November? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. And how do we f i n d your response? 

A. My response i s contained i n the e x h i b i t book, and 

i t ' s dated December the 1st, 1995. I t ' s f o l l o w i n g the 
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Texaco l e t t e r . 

Q. I n t h a t l e t t e r , d i d you i n v i t e Mr. Snure t o 

consider the operating agreement, t o engage i n n e g o t i a t i o n s 

w i t h you and t r y t o come t o some v o l u n t a r y agreement w i t h 

you about the i n f i l l well? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. And d i d he e l e c t the o p p o r t u n i t y t o discuss w i t h 

you n e g o t i a t i o n s on a vo l u n t a r y basis f o r the d r i l l i n g of 

the i n f i l l w e l l? 

A. No, s i r , I have not heard anything f u r t h e r from 

Four Star. 

Q. Have you heard anything f u r t h e r i n w r i t i n g from 

Mr. Hartman subsequent t o h i s November l e t t e r t o you, 1995 

l e t t e r ? 

A. No, s i r , I have not. 

Q. Have you heard anything from Williams Production 

Company? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I s t h a t the f i n a l l e t t e r i n the e x h i b i t book? 

A. Yes, s i r , i t i s . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. Williams d i d again execute the si g n a t u r e pages t o 

the o p e r a t i n g agreement, and I asked them t o o f f e r t h e i r — 

render t h e i r o pinion concerning the 1953 agreement. 

And the l e t t e r t h a t ' s dated January the 11th of 
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1996 s t a t e s t h a t Williams does agree w i t h our p o s i t i o n t h a t 

the 1953 operating agreement does not cover subsequent 

d r i l l i n g and does not cover the i n f i l l d r i l l i n g and t h a t 

they recognize t h a t i f we can't get the p a r t i e s t o j o i n 

v o l u n t a r i l y i n the w e l l , then we would have t o go ahead and 

pool t h e i r i n t e r e s t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s t a l k about t h a t , Mr. Alexander. 

You've been doing t h i s a l o t of years, and you've been 

working t h i s p a r t i c u l a r problem f o r a long time. 

I n the absence of a D i v i s i o n d e c i s i o n w i t h 

regards t o a m o d i f i c a t i o n of the w e l l spacing plan, do you 

have an opi n i o n as t o whether there's any reasonable 

o p p o r t u n i t y t o reach a vo l u n t a r y agreement w i t h the p a r t i e s 

t h a t are s t i l l not committed t o d r i l l i n g the i n f i l l w ell? 

A. Yes, I — 

Q. What i s t h a t opinion? 

A. My opinion i s t h a t we're not going t o be able t o 

reach agreement f o r the vo l u n t a r y d r i l l i n g of t h i s w e l l . 

We were not able t o reach an agreement since 1993 on the 

d r i l l i n g of t h i s w e l l , and I don't see any movement i n t h a t 

area, and I t h i n k t h i s i s the only a l t e r n a t i v e l e f t t o us. 

MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes my examination of 

Mr. Alexander. 

For purposes of the record at t h i s p o i n t , we w i l l 

ask the admission of h i s e x h i b i t s as he's i d e n t i f i e d them. 
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They are c u r r e n t l y E x h i b i t 3, E x h i b i t 4, E x h i b i t 6 and the 

f i r s t page of E x h i b i t 7. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: E x h i b i t — I'm so r r y , are 

the r e any objections? 

MR. CARR: No o b j e c t i o n . 

MR. CONDON: No. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: E x h i b i t s 3, 4 and the f i r s t 

page of E x h i b i t Number 7 — 

MR. KELLAHIN: — plus E x h i b i t 6. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: — plus E x h i b i t Number 6 w i l l 

be admitted i n t o evidence a t t h i s time. 

(Off the record) 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I'm going t o open up cross-

examination, Mr. Carr, Mr. Condon. I ' l l l e t you decide who 

wants t o ask questions f i r s t . 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CARR: 

Q. Mr. Alexander, j u s t t o be sure I understand the 

e x h i b i t s , I ' d l i k e t o go t o the documents behind Tab 4. 

I f I understand your testimony, Meridian f i r s t 

proposed the Seymour 7A w e l l t o Hartman and Texaco and 

W i l l i a m s by i t s l e t t e r d a t e d January 27, 1993; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And then attached t o t h a t l e t t e r was an AFE? 
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A. Correct. 

Q. There were no other AFEs prepared by Meridian 

d u r i n g 1993, were there? 

A. That were furnish e d t o the p a r t i e s ? 

Q. Yes. 

A. None t h a t we furnish e d t o the p a r t i e s . 

Q. And i f I look a t the AFE, the t o t a l AFE submitted 

i n January, 1993, showed a t o t a l completed cost of 

$569,600; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And then during the year there were n e g o t i a t i o n s 

w i t h Texaco, and by l e t t e r dated September 30, 1993, Texaco 

wrote Meridian and advised Meridian t h a t the w e l l proposal 

d i d n ' t meet i t s economic — " i t " being Texaco's — economic 

requirements; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. From t h a t date, September 30, 1993, u n t i l October 

31, 1995, th e r e were no other n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h Texaco or 

Four Star; i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Would you repeat the dates again, please? 

Q. The l e t t e r from Texaco, 9-30-93, when they s a i d 

the proposal d i d n ' t meet t h e i r economic requirements, u n t i l 

October 31, 1995, you were not n e g o t i a t i n g w i t h Texaco or 

Four Star concerning t h i s w e l l , were you? 

A. No, s i r . 
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Q. Following the October 31, 1995, l e t t e r , and p r i o r 

t o the f i l i n g of the po o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n on November 8th of 

1995, d i d you engage i n any n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h Texaco? 

A. No, s i r , I d i d not. 

Q. I f I look at the October 31, 1995, l e t t e r , t h e r e 

i s a new AFE attached t o t h a t , i s there not? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. This shows a t o t a l AFE cost of $524,853; i s t h a t 

r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Or approximately $44,000 or $45,000 less than the 

p r i o r approval — or proposal? 

A. Approximately, yes, s i r . 

Q. And so what we're proposing on October 31, i s a 

less expensive w e l l ; i s n ' t t h a t f a i r t o say? 

A. Yes, s i r , on an estimated basis, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. To a p a r t y who had expressed concern about the 

economics of the w e l l not meeting i t s economic c r i t e r i a , 

r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And you're proposing a w e l l at a somewhat 

d i f f e r e n t l o c a t i o n ; i s t h a t not correct? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And yet there have been no n e g o t i a t i o n s 

concerning t h i s matter p r i o r t o the p o o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n f o r 
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25 months; i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

MR. CARR: That's a l l I have. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Thank you, Mr. Carr. 

Mr. Condon? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CONDON: 

Q. Yes, Mr. Alexander, when d i d Meridian f i r s t 

become the operator of the Seymour 7 well? 

A. I don't know t h a t I brought notes on the date 

t h a t we o f f i c i a l l y took over. We purchased the i n t e r e s t 

from Unicon Production Company, and a l l of those documents 

have been f i l e d i n order t o take over on the operations and 

under the com agreement. But I don't b e l i e v e I brought 

those documents w i t h me t o t e l l you those dates. 

Q. Okay. You can't give us any k i n d of an estimate 

of how long i t took Meridian t o propose t h i s Seymour 7A 

w e l l a f t e r i t became operator? 

A. Not wit h o u t knowing e x a c t l y the date t h a t we took 

over as operator. 

Q. Okay. Can you give us an estimate of how long a 

pe r i o d t h a t was? 

A. I ' d p r e f e r not t o speculate about i t . I can 

c e r t a i n l y f i n d t h a t date f o r you, and then we would know, 

but — 
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Q. But i t was sometime p r i o r t o January of 1993? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Now, you o f f e r e d some testimony about new j o i n t 

o p e r a t i n g agreements t h a t had been negotiated i n the area 

and the o l d — I assume when you're r e f e r r i n g t o the o l d 

j o i n t o p e r a t i n g agreements you're r e f e r r i n g t o ope r a t i n g 

agreements s i m i l a r i n form and substance t o the 1953 

op e r a t i n g agreement t h a t authorizes Meridian t o operate the 

Seymour 7 w e l l ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. I don't b e l i e v e I understood — Would you repeat 

the question — 

Q. Sure — 

A. — r e s t a t e i t ? 

Q. Well, yeah, you were — You gave some testimony 

about the n e g o t i a t i o n of new j o i n t o p e rating agreements, 

and I t h i n k i n f a c t t h a t on one of the e x h i b i t s t h a t we 

discussed, E x h i b i t 7, your — down a t the bottom you have 

the l i t t l e r e c tangular box w i t h the red s t r i p e s t h a t i s 

designed t o i n d i c a t e i n f i l l w e l l s t h a t are sub j e c t i n the 

area t o new j o i n t operating agreements, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Okay. And you are d i s t i n g u i s h i n g new j o i n t 

o p e r a t i n g agreements from o l d j o i n t o p e rating agreements 

s i m i l a r t o the 1953 operating agreement t h a t a p p l i e s t o 

au t h o r i z e Meridian t o operate the Seymour 7 w e l l ; i s t h a t 
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r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, I'm d i s t i n g u i s h i n g between the ope r a t i n g 

agreements t h a t were entered i n t o , as opposed t o the 

ope r a t i n g agreement t h a t was attached t o the o r i g i n a l 

farmout agreement, t h a t the p a r t i e s had o r i g i n a l l y intended 

t o use. 

Q. Okay. And you agree, do you not, t h a t the 1953 

op e r a t i n g agreement pools a l l i n t e r e s t s f o r the east h a l f 

of Section 23, f o r t h a t 320-acre p r o r a t i o n u n i t , does i t 

not? 

A. The operating agreement? 

Q. The 1953 operating agreement r e f l e c t s a p o o l i n g 

of i n t e r e s t of a l l i n t e r e s t owners, f o r the east h a l f of 

Section 23 f o r t h a t 320-acre p r o r a t i o n u n i t , doesn't i t ? 

A. Only i n s o f a r as i t concerned the Seymour Number 7 

w e l l . 

Q. Okay. And you o f f e r e d some testimony e a r l i e r , I 

thought, t h a t i n d i c a t e d t h a t you might have some k i n d of an 

op i n i o n as t o why the p a r t i e s on agreements l i k e the 1953 

op e r a t i n g agreement here agreed t o the d r i l l i n g of only one 

w e l l on these t r a c t s and made no p r o v i s i o n f o r a d d i t i o n a l 

operations? 

Did I misunderstand your testimony? Do you have 

some k i n d of i n f o r m a t i o n regarding the background f o r the 

n e g o t i a t i o n of the 1953 operating agreement t h a t a p p l i e s 
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here? 

A. Yes, I have some background f o r the 1953 

agreement t h a t applies t o the Seymour Number 7 w e l l . 

Q. Okay, and what i s your background understanding 

of t h a t agreement? 

A. That the successors i n i n t e r e s t t o Southern Union 

Gas Company and/or Southern Union Gas Company d r i l l e d the 

Seymour Number 7 w e l l under the o r i g i n a l farmout agreement. 

Q. Uh-huh. 

A. A f t e r they had — Some years l a t e r , a f t e r they 

had d r i l l e d t h a t w e l l , Western Natural Gas or i t s successor 

i n i n t e r e s t , Arco, elected t o convert i t s o v e r r i d i n g 

r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t t h a t i t had i n the Seymour Number 7 t o a 

working i n t e r e s t . 

And then when they elected t o convert t h a t 

i n t e r e s t , then obviously they needed an ope r a t i n g agreement 

t o c o n t r o l the operations of the Seymour Number 7 w e l l . 

And from what I f i n d i n the records, t h a t ' s the p o i n t i n 

time t h a t these p a r t i e s entered i n t o t h a t o p e r a t i n g 

agreement. 

Q. Okay, and t h a t ' s the 19 53 o p erating agreement 

between Southern Union and Sk e l l y O i l Company; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. I be l i e v e t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

MR. CONDON: Okay. Mr. Examiner, I j u s t want t o 
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make sure t h a t we have i n the record — I know t h a t both 

Mr. Carr and I have attached t o the pleadings t h a t we f i l e d 

copies of the operating agreement. 

I f we have Mr. K e l l a h i n ' s concurrence and your 

permission t o assure t h a t those documents do become p a r t of 

the r e c o r d i n t h i s case, so t h a t we make our record and so 

t h a t the Hearing Examiner has before him a copy of t h a t 

1953 o p e r a t i n g agreement t h a t everybody agrees i s the 

ope r a t i n g agreement, then I won't need t o have Mr. 

Alexander i d e n t i f y t h i s one t h a t I have here. 

But i f we don't have t h a t agreement, I ' d l i k e t o 

ask him t o i d e n t i f y t h i s so we have i t as p a r t of the 

record. 

MR. KELLAHIN: To a s s i s t Mr. Condon, Mr. 

Examiner, I t h i n k we can accomplish t h i s by l o o k i n g a t the 

documents behind E x h i b i t Tab Number 7. We s t a r t e d t h e r e 

and looked a t the p l a t and stopped. 

But i f we could q u i c k l y have Mr. Alexander 

a u t h e n t i c a t e the r e s t of these documents you w i l l f i n d not 

only the farmout agreement but the communitization 

agreement and then the operating agreement which Mr. Condon 

has j u s t r e f e r r e d t o . I t ' s a l l i n t h i s e x h i b i t book, and 

maybe t h i s i s a convenient place t o introduce t h i s matter 

i n the record. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Do you have any problem w i t h 
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t h a t , Mr. Condon? 

MR. CONDON: Well, the only question I have — 

and I'm about halfway through my copy of E x h i b i t 7, and I 

t h i n k i t ' s Schedule B, i s n ' t i t , t h a t i s the copy of the 

op e r a t i n g agreement? — and t h a t ' s — i t ' s a l i t t l e b i t 

d i f f e r e n t from mine. I've got a recorded copy here. 

MR. KELLAHIN: What's confusing you w i t h i s , the 

op e r a t i n g agreement had a sample form — 

MR. CONDON: Uh-huh. 

MR. KELLAHIN: — unexecuted, Schedule D. 

Continue past t h a t i n the e x h i b i t book. You're going t o 

come t o an executed communitization agreement — 

MR. CONDON: Right. 

MR. KELLAHIN: — which u n f o r t u n a t e l y should have 

a tab and doesn't. 

MR. CONDON: Okay. 

MR. KELLAHIN: And a t the very end, then, before 

you go i n t o E x h i b i t 8 — 

MR. CONDON: Okay. 

MR. KELLAHIN: — you're going t o f i n d the 

executed operating agreement. 

MR. CONDON: A l l r i g h t . 

Q. (By Mr. Condon) Now, Mr. Alexander, do you 

have — I guess my l a s t question was a l i t t l e vague. Do 

you have any s p e c i f i c knowledge about why the p a r t i e s t o 
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the 1953 agreement l i m i t e d d r i l l i n g operations t o j u s t the 

one w e l l and d i d not provide f o r a d d i t i o n a l wells? Do you 

have any personal knowledge about tha t ? 

A. No, I d i d not see i n the records t h a t we acquired 

— from Unicon, I d i d not see s p e c i f i c reasons why they 

delayed i n proposing t h a t w e l l . 

They d i d propose t h a t w e l l i n 1986 t o the 

p a r t n e r s t h a t held an i n t e r e s t i n the w e l l a t t h a t time, 

and they d i d propose a new operating agreement i n order t o 

accomplish the d r i l l i n g of the Seymour Number 7A w e l l . The 

records i n d i c a t e t h a t they were unable t o reach the e n t i r e 

consensus on the terms of t h a t operating agreement and were 

never able t o put t h a t operating agreement together. 

Q. Now, as I understand i t , Meridian has — 

p r e s e n t l y has agreement of 4 6.5 percent of the working 

i n t e r e s t i n t h i s p r o r a t i o n u n i t , t o develop, which 

i n d i c a t e s t h a t a m a j o r i t y of the working i n t e r e s t i n t h i s 

p r o r a t i o n u n i t objects t o the proposed w e l l ; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? Or a t l e a s t has not agreed t o i t ? 

A. I do not have a j o i n d e r from e i t h e r Four Star nor 

Doyle Hartman, and they do have the 41-percent i n t e r e s t and 

12.5-percent i n t e r e s t . 

Q. Now, when you c i r c u l a t e d your i n i t i a l l e t t e r of 

January 27, 1993, t o the other working i n t e r e s t owners, you 

included a proposed j o i n t o perating agreement w i t h t h a t 
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package, d i d you not? 

A. Yes, s i r , I d i d . 

Q. Okay. And i n t h a t very f i r s t communication, what 

you were seeking t o do, as I understand from your l e t t e r 

w i t h the j o i n t operating agreement, would be t o inc l u d e the 

operations of both the Seymour Number 7 w e l l and the 

proposed Seymour 7A w e l l , under a re v i s e d j o i n t o p e r a t i n g 

agreement; i s t h a t accurate? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay, the proposed j o i n t o p e rating agreement t h a t 

you c i r c u l a t e d i n 1993, d i d t h a t have a nonconsent penalty 

p r o v i s i o n i n i t ? 

A. Yes, s i r , i t d i d . 

Q. Okay, what type of a penalty were you asking f o r 

back i n 199 3 when you f i r s t c i r c u l a t e d the JOA? 

A. I bel i e v e t h a t was a 300-percent — a 100- and a 

300-percent penalty s i t u a t i o n . I ' l l look back and confirm 

t h a t here. 

Q. I bel i e v e t h a t ' s —• 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. I be l i e v e t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

A. On page 6 of the operating agreement i t sets 

f o r t h our penalty p r o v i s i o n s . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And then when you -- When you 

c i r c u l a t e d your October 31, 1995, l e t t e r , AFE, and a new 
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proposed j o i n t operating agreement, d i d the 1995 proposed 

j o i n t o p e r a t i n g agreement also c o n t a i n nonconsent pe n a l t y 

p r o v i s i o n s i n i t ? 

A. Yes, i t d i d . 

Q. And what were those provisions? 

A. They were — And l e t me double-check i t , but they 

were the same — I believe they were the same pen a l t y 

p r o v i s i o n s . 

Q. 100 and 300? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. And then when you f i l e d your A p p l i c a t i o n 

w i t h the OCD, as I understand, the A p p l i c a t i o n has a 200-

percent penalty f o r nonconsent; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's over and above the 100 percent. The two 

are synonymous, they equate. The 2 00-percent p e n a l t y and 

the 3 00-percent penalty i n the j o i n t o p e rating agreement 

are, i n f a c t , the same penalty p r o v i s i o n s . 

MR. CONDON: A l l r i g h t . And you i n d i c a t e d t h a t 

you received a l e t t e r from Mr. Hartman — and what I would 

l i k e t o do i s , i f I could approach the witness, I've got a 

copy of i t , i f we could j u s t mark i t and have i t made an 

e x h i b i t t o the proceeding. Mr. Kellahin? 

What I w i l l do i s , I w i l l go ahead and have i t 

marked as E x h i b i t 11, i f I could. 

I f I could — Let me replace my copy w i t h yours, 
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because I went ahead and marked t h a t as 11, and j u s t ask 

you i f you can i d e n t i f y t h a t . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: And your reference i s Doyle 

Hartman E x h i b i t Number 11? 

MR. CONDON: Correct. 

Q. (By Mr. Condon) Let me j u s t ask you, i s t h a t the 

l e t t e r you received from Mr. Hartman i n response t o your 

October 31, 1995, l e t t e r , proposed AFE and the newly 

proposed j o i n t operating agreement? 

A. I t i s the l e t t e r . However, i t ' s not a newly 

proposed j o i n t operating agreement; i t ' s a m o d i f i c a t i o n of 

the o r i g i n a l 1993 agreement. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . What d i d you do i n response t o Mr. 

Hartman's l e t t e r ? Did you make any e f f o r t t o contact Mr. 

Hartman a f t e r r e c e i p t of t h i s l e t t e r ? 

A. No, I have not contacted anybody w i t h Mr. Hartman 

since t h i s l e t t e r . 

MR. CONDON: Okay, I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l the 

questions I have. I would l i k e t o move the admission of 

E x h i b i t 11. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Are there any objections? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: E x h i b i t Number 11 w i l l be 

admitted i n t o evidence. 

Mr. K e l l a h i n , I — 
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MR. KELLAHIN: I've got some quick r e d i r e c t f o r 

housekeeping. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: That and also perhaps a t t h i s 

p o i n t t o cover the remainder of E x h i b i t Number 7 — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r , t h a t was my i n t e n t . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, a l l r i g h t . 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Let's look a t the documents behind E x h i b i t Tab 

Number 7, Mr. Alexander. We have touched on them. They 

haven't been admitted. Let me have you a u t h e n t i c a t e them 

f o r me. 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Let's go through t h a t . We've t a l k e d i n f o r m a l l y 

about them. What's the f i r s t document? 

A. The f i r s t document i s e n t i t l e d "Farmout 

Agreement", and t h a t was the o r i g i n a l agreement between 

Western Na t u r a l Gas Company and Southern Union Gas Company 

t h a t covered these p r o p e r t i e s , t h i s p a r t i c u l a r p r o p e r t y , 

the Seymour Number 7 w e l l p r operty, and other p r o p e r t i e s . 

Q. When you're r e f e r r i n g t o other p r o p e r t i e s , i s 

t h i s the farmout agreement t h a t r e l a t e s back t o the p l a t , 

j u s t ahead of i t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . The p l a t , though, as I mentioned, i s 

only the Township 31 North, 9 West p o r t i o n of the c o n t r a c t 
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area. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . The co n t r a c t area of the farmout 

would have included other p r o p e r t i e s , but i n s o f a r as we see 

i t w i t h i n t h i s township, you have i d e n t i f i e d them? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Under t h a t farmout agreement there i s a simple 

j o i n t o p e r a t i n g agreement, i s there not? 

A. Yes, s i r , there i s , attached as an e x h i b i t t o 

t h i s farmout agreement. 

Q. And when we get t o the s p e c i f i c t o p i c of the east 

h a l f of the s e c t i o n , under the o l d agreements, the l a s t 

document i n here i s a copy of the executed o p e r a t i n g 

agreement, the A p r i l 10th, 199 3, agreement t h a t we've been 

discussing? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And t o the best of your knowledge, t h i s i s an 

accurate reproduction of t h a t operating agreement? 

A. Yes, s i r , i t i s . 

MR. CONDON: I'm so r r y , you said 1993? 

MR. KELLAHIN: 1953. 

THE WITNESS: 1953. 

MR. CONDON: Okay. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I misspoke, the 1953 agreement. 

Q. (By Mr. Ke l l a h i n ) Just ahead of the oper a t i n g 

agreement there i s a copy of a communitization agreement 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

69 

dated March 30th of 1953? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Do you see that? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. I s t h a t the communitization agreement t h a t 

a p p l i e s t o t h i s east h a l f of t h i s section? 

A. I t i s . 

Q. How do they f i t together? 

A. Well, the operating agreement and the 

communitization agreement — That's a standard p a r t of 

p u t t i n g a d r i l l block together, i s t h a t you enter i n t o an 

op e r a t i n g agreement t o get a verb a l agreement between the 

working i n t e r e s t owners, and you enter i n t o a 

communitization agreement t h a t pools the i n t e r e s t of the 

p a r t i e s , and more p a r t i c u l a r l y , the r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t s of 

the p a r t i e s , and the p r o v i s i o n s of the leases i n order t o 

develop the d r i l l block. 

Q. When you look a t the f i r s t page of the 

communitization agreement, what does t h i s language mean t o 

you as an expert? When you look i n the "whereas" clause 

and c o n t i n u i n g i n t h a t sentence i t says, operated i n 

conf o r m i t y w i t h an established well-spacing program, what 

i s happening here? 

MR. CONDON: I understand t h a t the D i v i s i o n ' s 

r u l e s are a l i t t l e d i f f e r e n t . I f I could j u s t have an 
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o b j e c t i o n t o the extent t h a t he's asking the witness t o 

give an i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of a document which I t h i n k speaks 

f o r i t s e l f . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I'm asking Mr. Alexander w i t h h i s 

e x p e r t i s e t o e x p l a i n t o us how t h i s j o i n t o p e r a t i n g 

agreement from 1953 i s a f f e c t e d and consolidated i n t o the 

communitization agreement, so t h a t he can t e l l us h i s 

understanding of how t h i s communitization agreement 

f u n c t i o n s . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I t h i n k t h a t ' s an appr o p r i a t e 

question. I'm going t o allow i t . 

THE WITNESS: Both the operating agreement and 

the communitization agreement, and i t ' s customary and 

normal p r a c t i c e , remain subject t o various laws and 

r e g u l a t i o n s . More p a r t i c u l a r l y i n our instance what we're 

concerned about i s t h a t i t i s subject t o any well-spacing 

program e s t a b l i s h e d by the D i v i s i o n , or any other 

j u r i s d i c t i o n a l agency, f o r t h a t matter. 

Q. (By Mr. Ke l l a h i n ) I s what i s o c c u r r i n g i n the 

1953 agreements s t i l l the p r a c t i c e when you deal w i t h 

f e d e r a l communitization of leases now? 

A. I t ' s under a d i f f e r e n t form, but i t ' s s t i l l the 

same p r a c t i c e , t h a t you have t o communitize leases before 

you can develop the p r o p e r t i e s . 
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MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes my examination of 

Mr. Alexander, Mr. Stogner. 

We would move now f o r m a l l y f o r the i n t r o d u c t i o n 

of a l l the documents behind E x h i b i t Tab Number 7. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Any objection? 

MR. CARR: No o b j e c t i o n . 

MR. CONDON: No. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: The remainder of E x h i b i t 

Number 7 i s hereby admitted i n t o evidence a t t h i s time. 

Mr. C a r r o l l , I believe you have a question a t 

t h i s time? 

MR. CARROLL: Yeah, I have a couple questions. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CARROLL: 

Q. Mr. Alexander, t h i s 1953 operating agreement, 

i t ' s not on a p r i n t e d form. I s t h i s a standard form 

o p e r a t i n g agreement? 

A. No, s i r , i t was — Back i n those days we d i d n ' t 

r e a l l y have standard form agreements. I t was an agreement 

t h a t was d r a f t e d by the p a r t i e s , i t was a d r a f t e d 

agreement. 

Q. And t h e same w i t h c o m m u n i t i z a t i o n agreements? 

A. I be l i e v e t h i s communitization agreement goes 

back a long time, but I believe i t was an o f f i c i a l form 

adopted by the Bureau -- by the USGS i n those days. So I 
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b e l i e v e i t conforms t o t h e i r r e g u l a t i o n s . 

Q. So the — Okay, communitization agreement i s an 

o f f i c i a l form. This operating agreement i s neg o t i a t e d 

between the p a r t i e s and i t ' s not r e a l l y a standard form? 

A. No, s i r , i t ' s not. 

Q. I f you could r e f e r t o your l e t t e r of October 

31st, 1995 — and I'm looking a t the l a s t sentence of the 

second paragraph — you say, I f we do not recei v e an 

e l e c t i o n t o p a r t i c i p a t e or nonconsent, we w i l l begin f o r c e 

p o o l i n g proceedings i n December, 1995. 

Do you see t h a t sentence? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And when was the A p p l i c a t i o n f o r t h i s f o r c e -

p o o l i n g case f i l e d ? 

A. I be l i e v e i t was f i l e d on November the 8th. 

Q. So why d i d you f i l e i t November 8th when you seem 

t o commit i n t h i s l e t t e r t o begin proceedings i n December? 

A. I t h i n k t h a t was a r e s u l t , probably, of a 

miscommunication between myself and Mr. K e l l a h i n on the 

t i m i n g of a c t u a l l y f i l i n g the f o r c e - p o o l i n g n o t i c e . 

MR. CARROLL: That's a l l I have. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. Carr, Mr. Condon, any 

questions? 

Mr. K e l l a h i n , anything f u r t h e r ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No, s i r . 
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EXAMINER STOGNER: At t h i s p o i n t , l e t ' s take a 

lunch break and reconvene here a t 1:15. 

(Thereupon, a recess was taken a t 12:07 p.m.) 

(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 1:15 p.m.) 

EXAMINER STOGNER: This hearing w i l l come t o 

order. 

At t h i s p o i n t i n Case 11,434, a motion has been 

made t o dismiss, subsequent t o our lunch break. 

I f e e l under Paragraph E of 70-2-17, the D i v i s i o n 

does have the a u t h o r i t y t o consider t h i s matter. However, 

a l o t can happen i n two years from 1993, t o the time which 

t h i s w e l l was proposed. And because there was r e a l l y about 

only e i g h t days f o r people t o reach v o l u n t a r y agreement, I 

don't f e e l t h a t there was s u f f i c i e n t time f o r g o o d - f a i t h 

e f f o r t s and n e g o t i a t i o n i n t h i s matter t o be considered. 

Therefore I am going t o dismiss Case Number 

11,4 34 and w i l l not even attempt t o see t h i s matter or even 

consider i t , should n e g o t i a t i o n s f a i l and t h i s matter need 

t o come back f o r force pooling, u n t i l March 11th. So 

t h a t ' s e s s e n t i a l l y a 60-day c o n s i d e r a t i o n i n t h i s . 

So w i t h t h a t , Case 11,434 i s hereby dismissed. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, may we have you 

issue an order on t h a t w i t h regards t o the two p a r t s of 

your d e c i s i o n so t h a t we w i l l be able t o n e g o t i a t e the 

other p a r t i e s , i n c l u d i n g Williams, should they decide now 
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t o change t h e i r mind about where they stand, under the 

r e c o g n i t i o n t h a t the D i v i s i o n , i n f a c t , does assert 

a u t h o r i t y t h a t i n the absence of a v o l u n t a r y agreement we 

may come back and fo r c e pool f o r the i n f i l l w e l l? 

EX7AMINER STOGNER: A di s m i s s a l order w i l l be 

issued subsequent t o today's d e c i s i o n . 

MR. KELLAHIN: A l l r i g h t , s i r . Thank you. 

MR. CARR: Thank you. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 

1:18 p.m.) 

* * * 
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